
 

Agenda - Health, Social Care and Sport Committee 
Meeting Venue: 

Committee Room 3 - The Senedd 

Meeting date: 13 June 2018 

Meeting time: 09.00

For further information contact: 

Claire Morris 

Committee Clerk 

0300 200 6355  

SeneddHealth@assembly.wales
------ 

1 Introductions, apologies, substitutions and declarations of 

interest 

   

2 Physical activity in children and young people: Evidence session 

with the Cabinet Secretary for Health and Social Services, the 

Cabinet Secretary for Education, and the Minister for Culture, 

Tourism and Sport 

(09.00 - 10.30) (Pages 1 - 38)  

Vaughan Gething AM, Cabinet Secretary for Health and Social Services 

Kirsty Williams AM, Cabinet Secretary for Education (09.00 – 10.00) 

Dafydd Elis-Thomas AM, Minister for Culture, Tourism and Sport 

David Rosser - Head of Sport, Welsh Government 

John Pugsley - Head of Arts, Humanities and Wellbeing Branch, Welsh 

Government 

Nathan Cook - Head of Healthy and Active Branch, Welsh Government 

3 Paper(s) to note 

(10.30)   

3.1 Letter from the Chair to the Welsh Local Government Association - 4 May 

2018 

 (Pages 39 - 40)  

3.2 Reply from the Welsh Local Government Association to the Chair - 30 May 

2018 

 (Pages 41 - 42)  

------------------------ Public Document Pack ------------------------



3.3 Active Healthy Kids – Wales 2018 Report 

 (Pages 43 - 48)  

4 Motion under Standing Order 17.42 to resolve to exclude the 

public from the meeting for the remainder of this meeting 

(10.30)   

5 Inquiry into physical activity of children and young people: 

Consideration of evidence 

(10.30 - 11.00)   



Document is Restricted

Pack Page 1

Agenda Item 2By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42



1 

Health, Social Care and Sport Committee 

Inquiry into the Physical Activity of Children and Young People 

1. Introduction

Substantially increasing levels of physical activity across Wales is a key commitment 

of our national strategy Prosperity for All. This reflects the importance which physical 

activity plays in supporting a healthy and active nation and is an integral part of 

preventative health across a range of cross-government portfolio areas.  

The importance of physical activity for children and young people is clear. It has 

multiple benefits for children’s physical, mental and social needs and aids strong 

growth, co-ordination and helps to reduce the risk of children becoming overweight 

or obese. The risks of being sedentary are well evidenced and unhealthy behaviours 

at an early stage are often taken with us into later life.  

There is a significant amount of work taking place across Government to promote 

physical activity.  This ranges from the co-ordinated sport and community activities 

delivered for us by Sport Wales to increasing physical activity within daily routines, 

delivered by a range of government departments. Actions taken by government have 

helped to: 

 Set an enabling legislative framework;

 Invest in infrastructure and programmes;

 Set policies to promote healthy settings;

 Promote leadership and collaboration; and

 Measure and monitor change.

Many challenges remain.  Although there is an upward trend in sport participation, 

levels of physical activity in children and young people have remained stubbornly 

low.  There are also inequalities such as a significant difference in physical activity 

levels between boys and girls.  A notable trend is for young people of both sexes 

between the ages of 14-21 to drop out of sport. 

Prosperity for All sets out a clear high level commitment across Welsh Government 

to increasing levels of physical activity.  This document presents examples of 

Pwyllgor Iechyd, Gofal Cymdeithasol a Chwaraeon 
Health, Social Care and Sport Committee 
HSCS(5)-18-18 Papur 1 / Paper 1

Pack Page 24



2 
 

initiatives currently under way and opportunities for collaborative working to deliver 

this commitment. 

2. Current Position 

An oral statement on the Independent Review of Sport Wales on 3 October 2017, 

was made by the previous Minister for Social Services and Public Health, which 

made reference to collaboration between Sport Wales and Public Health Wales to 

increase peoples’ physical activity levels. This will result in the development of 

collaborative joint actions to bring together opportunities to utilise resources and 

capacity across organisations.  

Following the Independent Review, Sport Wales will produce a vision document, 

following extensive consultation across Wales with a wide range of partners and 

stakeholders. Key areas identified for Sport Wales to focus upon which are 

contained in their remit letter for this year include getting more people active at every 

stage of their lives, providing children with the best start in life and to encourage 

them to be active, investing resources where they are needed most especially in 

socially disadvantaged areas so people have opportunities to take part in sport and 

physical activity and helping sport to continue to develop by nurturing talent. A new 

Sport Wales strategy will be published in the Autumn 2018. 

Keeping active can help people stay at a healthy weight or lose weight. Through the 

Public Health Wales Act 2017 there is a commitment to focus on the reduction and 

prevention of obesity. A consultation will be launched in the Autumn 2018, which will 

focus on a number of areas for action across diet, nutrition and physical activity.  

The Welsh Government is also working collaboratively with Local Health Boards to 

support a focus on physical activity. Public Health Wales produced briefing papers 

for health boards and partners in 2017, which shows that there is a cost benefit, 

where the NHS in Wales spent £35 million in 2015 treating preventable diseases 

caused by physical inactivity.  

3. Settings-based Approaches  

The Welsh Government supports a number of programmes or initiatives in Wales 

which aim to get more children and young people more active.  This includes scaled 

Pack Page 25



3 

population approaches, where measurement, evaluation and effectiveness are built 

into individual programmes at inception. 

Welsh Government has asked Sport Wales, Public Health Wales and Natural 

Resources Wales to work together to develop a collaborative action plan on physical 

activity across all ages.  This work is underway. 

Early Years 

Physical skills, body awareness and spatial awareness contribute to a child’s 

personal and social development by enhancing confidence and self-esteem. During 

play children engage in learning experiences that require them to use a range of 

physical skills whether playing indoors or outdoors. The Foundation Phase 

recognises physical development as a core area of learning to support children to 

understand how their bodies move and develop an understanding about the positive 

role which exercise plays.  

The Healthy Pre-school settings programme supports the development of a whole 

setting approach to a range of health topics, including physical activity/active play. 

Over 650 pre-school settings are currently being supported to develop this work 

which reflects the importance of the promotion of a wide range of accessible physical 

activities and active play for children and staff, including access to play environments 

and experiences that meet the developmental needs of children. 

Physical Activity in Schools 

Physical Activity forms part of the statutory curriculum for all pupils up to the age of 

16 playing a key role in building and maintaining their health, fitness and wellbeing.  

The programme of study for Physical Education (PE) requires schools to give learner 

opportunities to participate in the four specified areas of learning which cover Health, 

Fitness and Wellbeing, Creative Adventurous and Competitive activities. Delivery of 

the curriculum is delegated to schools and decisions on the precise content of a 

school’s programme and the choice of activities and resources used is a matter for 

local discretion to ensure that the needs of the children and local community are met. 

Between 2001 and 2014, the Welsh Government provided £26m funding to Sport 

Wales to deliver the PE and School Sports Initiative (PESS). PESS supported 

Pack Page 26



4 
 

improved standards of teaching and learning in curriculum PE. During the time, Key 

Stage 3 PE attainment levels increased from 61% in 2001 to 91% in 2015.  

 

In September 2014 the Physical Literacy Programme for Schools (PLPS) 

commenced, working in school in the most deprived areas in Wales. Between 2014 

and 2016, £3.7m has been provided to Sport Wales to manage the programme, 

which aimed to implement the recommendations from the Physical Activity Task and 

Finish Group Chaired by Baroness Tanni Grey-Thompson. An evaluation of PLPS by 

SPEAR, Canterbury Christ Church University shows that  , the PLPS has engaged 

almost 16,500 young people from primary and secondary schools, of which almost 

6,000 were involved in Young Ambassador-led opportunities, and over 10,500 

involved in engaging opportunities. The number of young people participating in 

physical activity every day by week 12 has increased by 204%, resulting in over 

5,000 additional young people engaging in physical activity every day. 

Following consideration of the Successful Futures report by Professor Donaldson we 

are developing a new curriculum. Six new Areas of Learning Experiences (AoLEs) 

will be central to the new curriculum one of which will be Health and Wellbeing. 

The key legacy from The PLPS programme was the interactive Physical Literacy 

Journey (PLJ) (formerly known as the Physical Literacy Framework) which has been 

published on Sport Wales website. The PLJ has been developed as a tool to help 

stakeholders determine and support progress of children and young people. The PLJ 

has been considered by the Health and Wellbeing AoLE pioneer schools as part of 

the new Curriculum developments. 

Dragon Sport encourages children aged 7 to 11 to participate in eight extra-curricular 

sports and includes the training of volunteers to deliver sporting opportunities with 

96% of primary schools delivering Dragon Sport across Wales. £1.02m was invested 

in 2017-2018. 5x60 is an extra curricular programme for 11-16 year olds; where fully 

trained officers are located in participating secondary schools and activities range 

from mountain biking, hill walking, surfing, football, cricket, netball, dance, aerobics 

and table tennis. This programme is being rolled out across 99% of secondary 

schools in Wales with £4.2m invested in 2017-2018. Welsh Government support is 

offered to local authorities to provide Free Swimming to  children 16 and under and 

Pack Page 27



5 
 

adults 60 and over. A budge of  £3m was made available in 2017-18. The Active 

Young People programmes and the Free Swimming schemes are currently being 

reviewed and the outcomes are expected to be reported shortly.   

 

The Welsh Government has worked collaboratively with Public Health Wales to 

launch the Daily Mile an initiative which gets school pupils completing together a mile 

every school day. Since the launch in 2017 we have seen a steady rise schools 

signing up to the initiative. Around 200 schools in Wales now take part. A recent 

long-term study on the impacts of the Daily Mile has been published by the 

Universities of Stirling and Edinburgh. It found that the Daily Mile increases levels of 

moderate to vigorous intensity physical activity, improves body composition, fitness 

levels and reduces average daily sedentary behaviour.  

Whole School Approaches 

The Welsh Network for Healthy Schools was established to support a whole school 

approach and ethos towards health and well being including physical activity.  The 

Welsh Government provided funding for local schemes, £2.3m per annum through 

Public Health Wales’ core budget. Dedicated healthy school practitioners work 

directly with schools to help them implement improvements to school practice in 

order to comply with the national framework. Over 99% of all schools in Wales are 

now involved in the programme. To date 163 have achieved the National Quality 

Award. A Cochrane review, undertaken by researchers including those at DECIPHer, 

Cardiff University, looked at the best evidence available worldwide to determine the 

effectiveness of the ‘Health Promoting Schools’ (HPS) approach. The research found 

that interventions using the HPS approach were able to reduce students’ body mass 

index (BMI), increase physical activity and fitness levels and improve fruit and 

vegetable consumption. 

In line with the Network of Health Schools ethos we are focussed on the role of 

schools as healthy settings. The Healthy Eating in Schools (Nutritional Standards 

and Requirements) (Wales) Regulations 2013 sets out the types of food and drink 

that should be provided during the school day. This includes not allowing schools to 

serve confectionery, increasing the availability of fruit and vegetables served by 

Pack Page 28



6 
 

schools, limiting foods cooked in fats and oils and schools only providing healthy 

drinks, such as water and milk. 

Further Education 

Sport Wales provide project funding for Further Education (FE) colleges which is 

managed by ColegauCymru. The project’s original aims are increasing participation, 

tackling inequality and developing volunteering. Tackling inactivity has become a 

focus for the project and in the first four years of the partnership over 5,000 non-

sporty students have tried a new activity, hopefully leading to a healthier lifestyle. 

This equates to over 11% of the FE population in Wales. Sport Wales have funded 

an independent review of the FE project which will be used as the basis for 

development of a new strategy for FE sport and wellbeing in Wales from 2018/19 

onwards.  

4. Active Environments 

Physical activity is not just about children and young people participating in 

organised sport and activities. Building increasing walking or cycling within daily 

routines can support positive lifestyles and ingrain healthy habits for life. The Welsh 

Government will continue to invest in our infrastructure to develop inclusive 

environments which encourages increased levels of physical activity. The Active 

Travel Act is a critical enabler. The total available funding for local active travel 

schemes is nearly £82m over the next three years and additionally, we expect to 

spend £9.5m on Active Travel as part of our own major highway projects over the 

same timescale. We will continue to work with local authorities and partners through 

the development of Network Route maps. 

We recognise that achieving a shift in travel behaviour on a large scale is crucial to 

the long term success of the Act. We also recognise that this will be hugely 

challenging and require a concerted effort by all partners. The most recent high level 

data on levels of active travel from the new National Survey for 2016-17 indicates 

decreases in walking and cycling among adults and a more worrying decline in 

walking to school, where children actively travelling to primary school fell from 50% 

in 2013-14 to 44% in 2016-17. 

 

Pack Page 29



7 
 

Active Journeys 

Increasing levels of walking and cycling to schools is a high priority, as behaviours 

formed in childhood can have a lasting impact on later life. Across Government we 

have a range of programmes which encourage active travel in a school setting. This 

includes, the Active Journeys programme, which delivers a package of interventions 

in schools across Wales in order to support schools in changing travel to school 

behaviour and enabling active travel within schools. Over 280 schools have 

benefitted from the programme, receiving direct support from Sustrans Cymru school 

officers. Its interim annual report suggests that for those schools participating we 

have seen an increase of 6.5 percentage points in active travel journeys to school 

after one year and 9.6 percentage points after two years. 

Play 

The Welsh Government places great value on play and its importance in the lives of 

our children. We believe that children have a fundamental right to be able to play, 

and that play is central to their enjoyment of life. It contributes to their and their 

families’ well-being, health and future life chances. We also believe that play is 

essential for the growth in children’s cognitive, physical, social and emotional 

development.  

The Play Sufficiency duty, part of the Welsh Government’s anti-poverty agenda and 

Our ‘Wales – a Play Friendly Country' statutory guidance fully recognises that whilst 

play is important in its own right, it is also an important component in achieving other 

agendas relating to children’s well-being and development. The Welsh Government 

recognises the importance of play in children’s lives, particularly outdoor play in 

green spaces, which contributes to children’s health, development and appreciation 

of the environment. We have demonstrated our commitment by the allocation of just 

under £5 million since 2013 to support local authorities to meet their Play Sufficiency 

duty. We also recently announced the allocation of a further £1.7 million for local 

authorities to support delivery. 

 

 

Pack Page 30



8 
 

5. Targeted Approaches to increase physical activity levels 

Whilst we know that whole population approaches will be successful in achieving 

population health outcomes, we also know that certain programmes and practitioners 

play an important role to tackle health inequalities with particular groups in the 

population. There are also specific barriers which prohibit increasing physical activity 

levels amongst certain groups and Protected Characteristics. 

Community Based Approaches 

The Welsh Government Primary Care Plan aims to develop a more “social” model of 

health, which promotes physical, mental and social well-being, rather than just the 

absence of ill health and draws in all relevant organisations, services and people to 

ensure the root causes of poor health are addressed. Social prescribing offers the 

opportunity for a more co-productive model of well-being where patients, including 

families and children can become involved in decisions about their own health and 

more proactive in looking after themselves. This includes signposting to local 

services around lifestyle choices and to increase activity. We also know there are 

established links between good mental health, wellbeing and physical activity. The 

Welsh Government have committed to delivering a social prescribing pilot for mental 

health services and two small-scale pilots are being funding through the ‘Innovate to 

Save’ fund. 

A Wellbeing Bond has been launched which will aim to develop innovative, 

community approaches to improving mental and physical health and to reduce 

sedentary lifestyles. This includes aligning funding through a commitment to deliver a 

challenge fund for sport as part of Prosperity for All. This will be utilised to focus 

upon local priorities to provide a healthy and active fund and the first pilot of funding 

intends to focus £1m investment into increasing levels of physical activity across 

Wales. This will potentially include developed projects which will focus upon children 

and young people.  

The success of grassroots approaches such as Parkrun have been successful at a 

local level and we will continue to invest in grass roots sport.  

Since 2004 Sport Wales has collated data through its Active Adult Survey (now 

incorporated in the National Survey for Wales 2016/17) and the Schools Sport 

Pack Page 31



9 
 

Survey.  This information allows them to review both reasons for not participating (or 

not participating more) in sport and physical activity as well as the kinds of activities 

that respondents say they would like to do more.  This information will continue to be 

used to help inform sport-related action plans. 

We know for some that a lack of access to community sport facilities can be a 

significant barrier for engagement and participation in physical activity.  Following the 

decision by Cabinet in July 2016 not to bid for 2026 Commonwealth Games, the 

Cabinet Secretary for Economy and Infrastructure (now Transport) announced a 

review of sports facilities in Wales.  This work will run until the end of the summer 

2018.  The aim of this work is to consider how to increase the spread of world class 

sports venues across the country that would also benefit the local community (as 

well as elite and performance athletes). 

Poverty 

Children from poorer circumstances can experience increased exposure to risk 

factors including poorer diets and lower physical activity levelsThe School Holiday 

Enrichment Programme (SHEP) is multi-agency programme which seeks to enhance 

the summer holiday experience for children from the most deprived communities 

providing them with healthy food, getting them outside, active and having fun. In 

2017 SHEP was delivered in 38 schools across 12 local authorities in Wales to 

approximately 1500 children. Following a positive evaluation the Welsh Government 

has agreed to fund the WLGA with £500,000 of additional funding for 2018/19 and 

2019/20. This coming summer it is expected the programme will be delivered in 60 

schools across 16 local authorities reaching around 3200 children.   

Sport Wales and the Welsh Government are continuing to invest in StreetGames 

Wales which works with disadvantaged communities engaging young people in 

‘doorstep’ sports activities to help reduce inequalities and tackle poverty through 

sport.  

Pregnancy, Families and Parenting 

Chief Medical Officer recommendations released in 2017 suggests that pregnant 

women should carry out around 150 minutes of ‘moderate intensity’ activity every 

week. This aims to reduce issues such as obesity, diabetes and other health 

Pack Page 32



10 
 

concerns during pregnancy. Information and guidelines were developed for health 

board and partners.  

Practitioners play a vital role to support physical activity. The Healthy Child Wales 

Programme (HCWP) sets out what planned contacts children and their families can 

expect from their health boards; from maternity service handover to the first years of 

schooling (0-7 years). These universal contacts cover three areas of 

intervention; screening, immunisation and monitoring and supporting child 

development. The programme includes a consistent range of evidence based 

preventative and early intervention measures, and advice and guidance to support 

parenting and healthy lifestyle choices.  

Flying Start provides opportunities for interventions with families and children to 

promote healthy lifestyles within the most disadvantages communities in Wales. The 

Flying Start health programme sets down an enhanced universal programme of 

interventions which should be delivered to all Flying Start families. A family receiving 

Flying Start health services can expect as many as 7 additional ‘contacts’ from their 

health visitor. The promotion of key public health messages and of healthy lifestyles 

is a key part of the additional Flying Start health support offered by health visitors 

and the wider workforce. 

Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACEs) 

Public Health Wales has undertaking a study into ACEs and published a series of 

four reports on its findings. A report into links with mental health found that regular 

participation in sport during childhood was associated with lower levels of mental 

illness. While much attention has been paid to the cardiovascular and weight 

reduction potential of participating in sport, its impact of friendship opportunities, 

benefits to mental health, access to role models and the other aspects of resilience 

needs to be factored into its benefits and further understood. 

We have a range of current programmes which support those who have 

experienced, are experiencing, or are in danger of experiencing ACEs. These 

include the Flying Start, Families First and Children First programmes, all of which 

work with children and their families to identify risks and needs and offer appropriate 

and timely interventions to address them.  

Pack Page 33



11 
 

Girls and Young Women 

There is a significant difference in physical activity levels between boys and girls with 

20.1% of boys and 10.7% of girls participating to the recommended amount.   

A barrier to participation may be the “type” of sport boys and girls are allowed to 

participate in, typically football and rugby for boys, netball and hockey for girls. 82% 

of girls perceive there to be at least one barrier to taking part in PE at school 

compared to 58% of boys. Research by Women is Sport (2012) has found that boys 

receive encouragement from friends to be sporty whereas girls do not, that women 

make up only 7% sport media coverage in the UK and that 1 in 3 14-16 year old girls 

are unhappy with their body image, feeling more self conscious than boys. 

Sport Wales continue to work to close the sport and physical activity participation 

gaps between males and females and to focus on providing good quality sporting 

opportunities for girls and young women to take part in sport. Through their “Calls for 

Action” programme, over £1.5 million has been invested in a number of projects that 

aim to increase regular sporting participation amongst young women and girls. The 

‘Us Girls’ movement set up by StreetGames Wales and funded by Sport Wales 

continues to increase participation in sport by young women from deprived areas 

across Wales. “Us Girls” won the Sporting Experience of the Year at the Wales Sport 

Wales Awards 2017. 

During August 2017, Sport Wales launched “Our Squad”, a campaign aimed at 

inspiring, empowering and encouraging more women and girls in Wales to get active 

and give sport a go; signposting new participants to the opportunities that are 

available in Wales. In terms of specific sports, girls’ football has grown significantly 

with the number of registered players increasing by 32% in the last year and the 

number of girls playing rugby in one of the 95 schools and colleges that are involved 

in the Welsh Rugby Union’s School-Club Hub Programme has gone from less than 

200 to almost 10,000 in the last three years. Wales Golf has also just appointed a 

new Women and Girls' Golf officer.   

Increasing participation in Black Minority Ethnic (BME) Communities 

Limited research has looked into BME children and physical activity participation, 

The School Sport Survey showed 52% of Black British or mixed race children were 

Pack Page 34



12 
 

hooked on sport, compared to 36% of Asian and other ethnic groups participated 

regularly.  

To ensure there is equality of opportunity for people to take part in sport within our 

communities Sport Wales have a BME Sport project in place. This group is making 

good progress with over 150 new volunteers and over 1900 males and 1300 females 

have engaged. Sport Wales has invested a further £92k for a 9-month period of 1st 

until 31st March 2019.  

Disabilities 

Disability Sport Wales (DSW) aim to promote and develop opportunities for disabled 

people to participate in sport and physical activity. Their vision is to transform lives 

through the power of sport so every person has the right to a full and lifelong 

involvement in sport and physical activity. DSW have in the region of 23,000 club 

members and provide over 1 million sport participation opportunities each year 

providing a range of activities and actively promote a “ I can do approach”.  

The Health Disability Sport Partnership is a joint project between Betsi Cadwalder 

University Health Board and Disability Sport Wales (DSW). The partnership has built 

a strong and sustainable relationship and pathway between Health and disability (or 

inclusive) sport, supporting disabled people to improve their physical and mental 

health and well being through physical activity.  

6. Leadership, Collaboration and Monitoring 

There is continuing practice developing across Wales which is helping to shape local 

delivery. This is being underpinned by the five ways of working through the 

Wellbeing of Future Generations Act 2015 and through Wellbeing Plans which will 

help to respond to local need. We are aware of emergent practice such as Newport 

Live, Getting North Wales Moving and Abertawe Bro Morgannwg University Health 

Board’s Physical Activity Strategy. These approaches have been developed through 

increased partnerships and greater local accountability. 

We also know that peer support is vital to drive behaviour change. Sport Wales is 

continuing to invest in the Young Ambassador Programme which is a highly 

successful programme for students in schools, colleges and universities, providing 

Pack Page 35



13 
 

opportunities to develop essential employability skills and experiences that create or 

fuel their aspirations and ambitions for the future.  It aims to empower and inspire 

young people to become leaders through sport to help encourage others to become 

hooked on sport and physical activity. With over 2,800 participants, Young 

Ambassadors are a vital part of the sporting workforce in Wales and volunteer 

numerous hours in schools and communities.   

We are continuing to draw upon a range of data sources to evaluate the impact of 

approaches. This includes:  

Chief Medical Officer Physical Activity Guidelines 

The Chief Medical Officer guidelines state that children and young people should 

engage in moderate to vigorous intensity physical activity for at least 60 minutes 

every day. Overall, 51% of children aged 3-17 meet the guidelines, however, only 

14-17% of children aged 11-16 partake in the recommended amount of physical 

activity.  

The guidelines are currently under review, being led by Bristol University on behalf of 

all UK nations to ensure they reflect the most updated evidence. 

Active Healthy Kids Report Card 

The Active Healthy Kids Wales card from 2016 assesses a range of data sources on 

physical activity to give a picture of the state of the nation, which is able to draw 

upon international comparators. This rates Wales as D- on levels of physical activity 

and sedentary behaviour. However, rates national government policies, strategies 

and investment at B-. A further publication is due in 2018.  

School Sport Survey and FE Sport & Active Lifestyles Survey  

Sport Wales collects data related to sports participation in Wales through the School 

Sport Survey. In 2015, 116,000 children from 1,000 different schools across Wales 

took part in the survey. The survey reported that 93% of children in Wales enjoy 

physical education and 48% of pupils across Years 3 to 11 in Wales take part in 

organised sporting activity outside of curriculum time on three or more occasions per 

week. However, boys (52%) were still more likely than girls (44%) to participate 

regularly in sport and physical activity.   

Pack Page 36



14 
 

The results of the school sports survey was subsequently published on our My Local 

School website. 

Research into sports participation amongst 14 to21-year olds indicates that both girls 

and boys drop out of sport during secondary school. The School Sport Survey and 

FE Sport & Active Lifestyles Survey will take place again this year and the results will 

be available in autumn 2018. 

 

 

Pack Page 37



Tim Peppin 

Director of Regeneration and Sustainable Development 

The Welsh Local Government Association

4 May 2018 

Dear Tim 

The National Assembly for Wales’s Health, Social Care and Sport Committee is 

currently undertaking an inquiry into physical activity of children and young 

people in Wales. 

Physical inactivity is considered to be the fourth leading risk factor for mortality. 

The Welsh Government has previously estimated the cost of physical inactivity to 

Wales as being £650 million per year. We know that active children are more likely 

to become active adults and we also know the importance of physical activity in 

tackling obesity. 

As part of its inquiry, the Committee has considered the facilities available for use 

by young people. In particular, we have reflected on the importance of appropriate 

space for play being taken into account when planning new developments. 

We believe that safe and accessible green spaces should be provided where any 

new substantial housing is to be permitted in order to ensure that a lack of space 

for play is not a barrier to increasing the levels of physical activity among children 

in Wales. We are aware of bad practice examples of instances where new housing 

developments have failed to provide appropriate spaces to play.  

We are aware that the Welsh Government is currently consulting on a revised 

version of Planning Policy Wales (Edition 10) to bring it in line with the Well-being 

of Future Generations Act. However, we would be grateful to hear your views on 

what you believe is required to ensure that appropriate green spaces are a key 

part of all new development planning. 

Pwyllgor Iechyd, Gofal Cymdeithasol a Chwaraeon 
Health, Social Care and Sport Committee  
HSCS(5)-18-18 Papur 2 / Paper 2

Pack Page 39

Agenda Item 3.1

http://www.assembly.wales/en/bus-home/committees/Pages/Committee-Profile.aspx?cid=448
http://senedd.assembly.wales/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=19490
http://senedd.assembly.wales/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=19490
https://beta.gov.wales/planning-policy-wales-edition-10


 

2 | P a g e  

 

 

Kind regards 

 

Dr Dai Lloyd AM 

Chair, Health, Social Care and Sport Committee 

Pack Page 40



The WLGA welcomes correspondence in Welsh or English - Mae WLGA yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg neu Saesneg 
Printed on recycled paper - Wedi’i argraffu ar bapur eildro 

Our Ref/Ein Cyf: 
Your Ref/Eich Cyf: 
Date/Dyddiad:  

30th May 2018 

Please ask for/Gofynnwch am:  

Tim Peppin 

Direct line/Llinell uniongyrchol:  

029 20 468669 

Email/Ebost: 

   tim.peppin@wlga.gov.uk 

 

Dr. Dai Lloyd 
Chair, Health, Social Care and Sport Committee 
National Assembly for Wales 
Cardiff Bay 
Cardiff CF99 1NA 

Dear Dai, 

Physical activity of children and young people in Wales 

Thank-you for your letter of 4th May and please accept apologies for 
the delay in replying. I wanted to canvass views amongst colleagues 
in local authority planning departments to inform my response. 

The revised Planning Policy Wales consultation has just closed and, as 
part of that process, WLGA also sought views from the 25 Local 
Planning Authorities. The greater alignment with the Well-Being of 
Future Generations Act Goals and ways of working was agreed as a 
positive change although many felt that the structure and 
presentation was confusing and challenging. The emphasis on place-
making was also positively received alongside the drive to consider 
the holistic impacts and needs of communities. The concern raised 
was that PPW outlined a great many things that were positive 
outcomes without recognising the constraints that development has 
to address and the realities of the industry.  

The specific references to recreational spaces set out from para. 
3.106 onwards did not elicit any detailed responses other than the 
more general points made in relation to development activity across 
Wales. The committee will be fully aware of the recent issues 
concerning TAN 1 and housing land availability studies. The issue 
here is a lack of a five-year housing land supply in the majority of 
Welsh Local Planning Authorities.  

Notwithstanding the current Welsh Government consultation on the 
move to disapply an element of TAN 1, the provision of housing land 
and viability remains an issue. Indeed, the provision of a large 
number of affordable dwellings is a major Welsh Government target 
that local authorities support.  

Functioning communities need a range of community facilities, open 
space, and active travel links to make these places work. 
Consequently, there is significant pressure to achieve a range of 

Steve Thomas CBE 

Chief Executive 

Prif Weithredwr 

Welsh Local Government 
Association 

Local Government House 
Drake Walk 

CARDIFF CF10 4LG 

Tel: 029 2046 8600 

Cymdeithas Llywodraeth 
Leol Cymru 

Tŷ Llywodraeth Leol 

Rhodfa Drake 
CAERDYDD CF10 4LG 

Ffôn: 029 2046 8600 

www.wlga.gov.uk 

Pwyllgor Iechyd, Gofal Cymdeithasol a Chwaraeon 
Health, Social Care and Sport Committee  
HSCS(5)-18-18 Papur 3 / Paper 3

Pack Page 41

Agenda Item 3.2

mailto:tim.peppin@wlga.gov.uk


The WLGA welcomes correspondence in Welsh or English - Mae WLGA yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg neu Saesneg 
Printed on recycled paper - Wedi’i argraffu ar bapur eildro 

outcomes from any S.106 negotiations and discussions about design standards and density. 

There has been an active debate as to where PPW uses language such as ‘should’ (as in 
para 3.106) and ‘must’. The document itself states that this distinction is drawn from the 
statutory - or otherwise - basis of the issue. It is clear that there will always be a need for 
an element of local flexibility to ensure appropriate outcomes. The concern would be that 
something like recreational spaces could get squeezed in the need to provide community 
facilities such as housing and especially affordable housing. This pressure is intensified as 
reduced budget provision impacts across the public sector. Therefore, the language within 
PPW is critical.  

Therefore, the committee may wish to consider if this part of the guidance should be firmer 
in directing that not only ‘should’ a framework be required (for well-located, good quality 
sport, recreational and leisure facilities, and develop clear policies for the provision, 
protection and enhancement of sport, recreation and leisure facilities) that all large-scale 
development must adhere to this framework unless there are significant reasons for not 
doing so. This would send a clearer signal to the development industry as to what the 
expectation is and it can be more fully factored into land acquisition costs.   

I hope this response is helpful to you in the committee’s work on this issue. 

Yours sincerely 

Tim Peppin 

Director of Regeneration and Sustainable Development 

Pack Page 42



@AHK_Wales 

Active Healthy Kids – Wales 2018 Report 

Professor Gareth Stratton: Deputy Pro-Vice Chancellor 

Swansea University 

Dr Lowri Edwards – Swansea University 

Richard Tyler – Swansea University 

The following report summarizes the work of the Active Healthy Kids Wales 2018 expert 

group. Active Healthy Kids is a Global Activity and represents and alliance of 52 countries 

worldwide who use an agreed methodology to grade criteria related to physical activity 

exercise and health in children (www.activehealthykids.org). Previous AHK-Wales report 

cards can be found at (www.activehalthykidswales.com). 

The AHK Wales expert group is representative of key stakeholders across Wales and is 

made up of academics and professionals from across the public sector. 

The aim of the report card is to use a simple grading approach to score 11 indicators. 

Seven in ”Physical Activity and Health Behaviour Outcomes” and 4 in “Settings and 

Influences on Physical Activity and Health.” 

The process is the most up to date data on children in Wales and we hope it will inform 

the Health, Social Care & Sport Committee’s inquiry into physical activity of children and 

young people. On 4 fronts: 

1. The data and processes represent key insights into behaviour, settings, policies

and investments.

2. The outcomes and recommendations for what needs to be done to join up insight

and research data across Wales.

3. The academic talent and knowledge of experts in this area across Wales

4. The process and product and its use as an advocacy tool for policy, makers and

professionals in decision making positions.

We hope that the committee find it insightful and we would be more than happy to 

expand or provide more detail on the data and findings if required. 

Best Wishes/Cofion Gorau 

Professor Gareth Stratton 

On behalf of the AHK-Wales 2018 Expert Group 

Pwyllgor Iechyd, Gofal Cymdeithasol a Chwaraeon 
Health, Social Care and Sport Committee  
HSCS(5)-18-18 Papur 4 / Paper 4

Pack Page 43

Agenda Item 3.3

http://www.activehealthykidswales.com/
http://www.activehealthykidswales.com/
http://www.activehealthykids.org/


www.activehealthykidswales.com @AHK_Wales 

Active Healthy Kids – Wales 2018 Report 

Summary of Grades Assigned to Indicators: 

Physical Activity and Health Behaviour Outcomes  

Overall Physical Activity 
18.4% of children and young people aged 11-16 years met the recommendation of at least 
60 minutes of MVPA every day of the week; 16.8% children and young people aged 11-16 

usually exercise in their free time every day of the week. 
In another survey, 51% of 3-17 year olds were active for at least an hour seven days a week. 

D+ 

Organised Sport Participation 
55% of children and young people aged 11-16 years take part in organised activities outside 

of school/outside of lessons.  

C+ 

Active Play 
41% of children aged 5-17 years reported playing out most days. 

In another survey, 44% of 11-16 year olds exercised in their free time during their summer 
holidays. 

C- 

Active Transportation 
44% primary school children and 33% secondary school pupils travel actively to school 

(walk with an adult, walk on their own or with other children, cycle). 
In another survey, 33.8% of children and young people aged 11-16 years walk/cycle to 

school; 36.1% children and young people walk/cycle from school. 

D+ 

Sedentary Behaviours 
80% of children/young people aged 11-16 years spend 2 or more hours sitting in their free 

time (e.g. watching TV, using a computer or mobile phone, travelling in a car or by bus, 
sitting and talking, eating and studying) on weekdays and 87% on the weekend. 

F 

Physical Fitness 
No national data covering all components of physical fitness and full age range therefore 

inconclusive. 

Inc. 

Physical Literacy 
Physical Literacy sub-indicators: Physical competence –  Dragon Challenge 2017 = D+; 

Motivation – No Data = INC; Confidence – No Data = INC; Knowledge and understanding. 
Overall Physical Literacy is therefore inconclusive. 

Inc. 

Settings and Influences on Physical Activity and Health 

Family and Peers 
59% of parents were active for 150 minutes+ a week, 8% of parents take part in vigorous 

activity for >75 minutes/ week, 31% of parents take their child to the playground and 20% 
of parents take part in informal games such as playing Frisbee. 

D 

School 
No updated data available for ‘School’ since AHK-Wales 2016, therefore School is 

inconclusive. 

Inc. 

Community and Environment 
No updated data available for ‘Community and Environment’ since AHK-Wales 2016 Report 

Card, therefore Community and Environment is inconclusive. 

Inc. 

Government 
21 Policy documents assessed - Health; Sport; Education; Environment; Transport; Urban 
Design/ Planning; Other (Play, Sustainable Development; Cross-cutting) Used HEPA Policy 

Assessment Tool & created weighted Scoring Grid using criteria. Based on present day 
activity not developing/ future plans = 54% 

C+ 

Pack Page 44

http://www.activehealthykidswales.com/
http://www.activehealthykidswales.com/


www.activehealthykidswales.com @AHK_Wales 

Active Healthy Kids-Wales Authors and Contributors: 

The Active Healthy Kids-Wales (AHK-Wales) 2018 report card was produced by an expert 
group that consisted of 24 academics, postgraduate researchers, professionals and 
practitioners. Academics and researchers across six Universities in Wales and England 
collaborated with professionals and practitioners working in Welsh Government, Public 
Health Wales, Sustrans, Play Wales, Sport Wales and the National Dance Company Wales 
to co-produce the AHK-Wales 2018 report card.  

Expert Group Members: 

Project Leads: 
Professor Gareth Stratton 
Dr Lowri Cerys Edwards 

Swansea University 

Research Assistant: 
Richard Tyler 

Swansea University 

Professor Sarah Nicholls 
Dr Maggie Miller  

Swansea University 

Dr Nalda Wainwright 
Dylan Blain 

University of Wales Trinity Saint David 

Dr Anna Bryant 
Dr Anwen Jones 

Cardiff Metropolitan University 

Dr Kelly Morgan 
Dr Graham Moore 

Cardiff University and DECIPHer 
(Development and Evaluation of Complex Interventions for 
Public Health) 

Dr Simon Williams University of South Wales 
Dr Cain Clark Hartpury College and University Centre 
Neil Canham Sustrans 
Marianne Mannello Play Wales 
Malcolm Ward 
Karen Thompson 

Public Health Wales 

Ceri Greenall 
Chris Roberts 

Welsh Government 

Julie Hobday National Dance Company Wales 
Lauren Carter-Davies 
Tim Evans 

Sport Wales 

Emily Marchant Swansea University 
Michael Sheldrick Swansea University 

Funding: 

The AHK-Wales 2018 Report Card was developed through in-kind contributions from the 

expert group. Work was supported by a grant from The Waterloo Foundation.  

The AHK-Wales Expert Group are seeking funding from partners and stakeholders to 

develop the Active Healthy Kids-Wales 2020 Report Card. 

Pack Page 45

http://www.activehealthykidswales.com/
http://www.activehealthykidswales.com/


www.activehealthykidswales.com  @AHK_Wales 
 
 

 

 

  

Background and Context: 

This is the third Active Healthy Kids Wales (AHK-Wales) report card following the 

inaugural and second report card published in 2014 and 2016 respectively. The 2018 

report card consolidates and translates research related to physical activity (PA) among 

children and young people in Wales. The report card aimed to raise the awareness of 

children and young people’s engagement in PA behaviours and influences, and advocate 

for children’s right to be active and healthy. 

The AHK-Wales is part of the AHK Global Alliance 3.0 that will release report cards from 

50 countries across 6 continents on 27th November in Adelaide, Australia.  

 

Methodology: 

The AHK-Wales 2018 Expert Group analysed results to assign grades using the “best 

possible evidence” from nationally representative data, for example, the National Survey 

for Wales and Health Behaviour in School-Aged Children. Following the AHK Global 

Alliance grading system, the Expert Group assigned a grade to the 11 indicators.  

The grading system used was developed by the Canadian group and is adopted by all 

countries participating in the AHK Global Alliance. The grades range from A+ where 94-

100% of children are meeting the criteria, to F where 0-19 % meet the recommended 

threshold. Inconclusive (INC) indicated that data was inadequate or not available: 

 

Grade Descriptor Prevalence 
A+  94 – 100 % 
A Wales is succeeding with most children and adolescents  87 – 93 % 
A-  80 – 86 % 
B+  74 – 79 % 
B Wales is succeeding with well over half of children and adolescents 67 – 73 % 
B-  60 – 66 % 
C+  54 – 59 % 
C Wales is succeeding with about half of children and adolescents 47 – 53 % 
C-  40 – 46 % 
D+  34 – 39 % 
D Wales is succeeding with under half of children and adolescents 27 – 33 % 
D-  20 – 26 % 
F  < 20 % 

Inc. Incomplete grade – data not sufficient or adequate N/A 

 

This report guided the use of the best available evidence and recognised that most of the 
available data were highly susceptible to bias. Further, the AHK-Wales 2018 Expert Group 
have also included recommendations on the evidence required for future AHK-Wales 
Report Cards. 

Pack Page 46

http://www.activehealthykidswales.com/
http://www.activehealthykidswales.com/


www.activehealthykidswales.com  @AHK_Wales 
 
 

 

 

  

Recommendations:  

Following the results of Wales’ 2018 AHK-Wales 2018 report card (see ‘Summary of 
Grades Assigned to Indicators’ section), the AHK-Wales 2018 Expert Group have made 
the following 12 recommendations: 

 

1. Overall: There is limited nationally representative data on children and young 
people’s physical activity and health. Specifically, there is a lack of evidence on 
children of early years (under 5 years old). More effort is required to address this gap 
through systematic robust data collection methods.  
 

2. Physical Activity: There continues to be no large-scale studies measuring the 
physical activity behaviours of young people objectively. This is particularly 
important given the evidence of over-reporting of physical activity levels observed via 
self-report when compared to accelerometer measured physical activity (Health 
Survey of England, 2008). 

 
3. Sedentary Behaviours: A significant effort needs to be made to address the very high 

levels of sedentary behaviour among young people in Wales. To inform the design of 
effective strategies, there is a need to first generate high-quality evidence using 
objective measures while simultaneously capturing information on the domain (e.g. 
school time, leisure time etc.), type (e.g. sitting using the phone) and context of 
sedentary behaviours.  

 
4. Government: Though still in existence and ‘active’, some of the policies are now 

dated. This is important to consider because some of the original and intended 
activities, funding mechanisms and delivery systems will have changed over time, 
particularly during this period that incorporates the global economic downturn that 
resulted in significant organisational, structural and systemic changes. 

 

5. Active Transportation: As with previous years, surveys only provide data on travel 
to/from school and not other destinations (e.g. park, shops).  More research is needed 
on how children and young people travel to other places including shops, parks and 
friends’ or relatives’ houses.  These journeys may provide additional opportunities for 
active transportation and therefore should be considered for future national surveys. 

 

6. Family and Peers: The data sourced from the National Survey for Wales solely 
focused on parental physical activity. There was no available data on peers’ influence 
for the 2018 report card. A significant effort needs to be made to address the lack of 
data available on peers’ influence.  

 

7. Organised Sport Participation: Self-report methods to obtain data on organised 
activities. Although the survey reports on the different types of organised activities 
that children and young people take part in, the survey does not report the frequency 
of participation (i.e. how many times a week do they take part in sport). 

 

Pack Page 47

http://www.activehealthykidswales.com/
http://www.activehealthykidswales.com/


www.activehealthykidswales.com  @AHK_Wales 
 
 

 

 

  

 

8. Physical Literacy: Current research does not account for the holistic nature of 
physical literacy. That is, research tends to separate the domains and does not 
consider interactions between the domains. As such, there is a need to be more 
creative with developing approaches to measure/assess physical literacy beyond the 
constructs of physical proficiencies, from a more holistic perspective (Edwards et al., 
2018). 

 

9. School: Given the upcoming curriculum changes that places an emphasis on health 
and well-being, nationally representative research on School is required. 

 

10. Active Play: Children’s ability to play outdoors locally ought to be promoted and the 
prioritisation of local community based interventions is necessary to address barriers 
to playing: safer roads, making the most of community assets-school grounds for play 
and school play time. 

 

11. Physical Fitness: It would appear imperative, that national health surveillance 
includes the objective measurement of physical fitness to enable the monitoring and 
evaluation of the effectiveness of public health interventions. The Swanlinx project 
exemplifies the systematic approach to the large-scale collection of physical fitness 
data that is required and should be supported.    

 

12. Community and Environment:  Little to no up to date evidence was available for this 
indicator. Further data collection, research, and interventions are needed to reduce 
the barriers towards physical activity and play. Improvements in perceived safety, 
access, and facilities may produce improvements in physical activity, outdoor and 
active play, and reductions in sedentary time.  

 

Conclusion: 

The AHK-Wales Expert Group endorses that a concerted effort be made to generate 

nationally representative data on the AHK indicators and to develop effective approaches, 

in the context of a political climate, that seek to increase PA and decrease sedentary 

behaviours at scale. 

 

Pack Page 48

http://www.activehealthykidswales.com/
http://www.activehealthykidswales.com/

	Agenda
	2 Physical activity in children and young people: Evidence session with the Cabinet Secretary for Health and Social Services, the Cabinet Secretary for Education, and the Minister for Culture, Tourism and Sport
	Paper 1 - Paper from the Welsh Government

	3.1 Letter from the Chair to the Welsh Local Government Association - 4 May 2018
	3.2 Reply from the Welsh Local Government Association to the Chair - 30 May 2018
	3.3 Active Healthy Kids – Wales 2018 Report



